1977

Rose Marie Hume v. Small Claims Court of Murray City : Appellant's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant seeks to reverse the District Court's denial of Appellant's Motion to Alter Judgment denying her Petition for Writ of Mandamus.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

After a hearing on April 21, 1977, in the Small Claims Court of Murray City, Respondent in this case, a judgment was entered in the matter of State of Utah v. Rose Marie Hume against Appellant. Appellant's counsel, who appeared at the hearing, first learned of the adverse judgment from the plaintiff in that matter on July 1, 1977. Appellant has never received notice of the judgment from Respondent. On the next working day, Appellant's counsel mailed Appellant's Notice of Appeal from the judgment to Respondent. The Notice of Appeal was filed in Respondent Court on July 7, 1977. The Respondent Court refused, however, to forward the Notice of Appeal to the District Court, stating that it was untimely, and claiming to have sent notice of entry of judgment to Appellant on May 2, 1977. Appellant petitioned the District Court for a Writ of Mandamus to compel Respondent to forward the Notice of Appeal. This Petition was denied. Appellant then made a timely Motion to Alter Judgment, under Rule 59 U.R.C.P., on the grounds that, as a matter of law, insufficient evidence was presented at the hearing on the Petition to justify a decision that Respondent sent Appellant notice

of entry of judgment. That Motion also was denied, on the grounds that it was improper procedure.

QUESTIONS TO BE DECIDED

1. Was the Rule 59(e) Motion to Alter Judgment a proper procedure to employ?
2. Does Appellant have a constitutional right to notice of entry of judgment from Small Claims Court?
3. Does Appellant have a statutory right to notice of entry of judgment from Small Claims Court?
4. Was there insufficient evidence as a matter of law to establish that Respondent sent Appellant notice of entry of judgment?

ARGUMENT

I APPELLANT'S MOTION TO ALTER JUDGMENT UNDER RULE 59(e) WAS THE PROPER PROCEDURE TO EMPLOY.

Rule 59(e), U.R.C.P., provides: "A motion to alter or amend the judgment shall be served not later than 10 days after entry of the judgment." A motion under this rule is the proper procedure to use to seek to vacate a judgment. Nichols v. State, 554 P.2d 231 (Utah 1976). In finding the motion in Nichols untimely, this Court stated, "After an order of dismissal, the plaintiff must move under Rules 59(e) or 60(b) to reopen the judgment." 554 P.2d at 232.

U.R.C.P. Rule 59 (e) is identical to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 59(e). Federal cases under that rule are instructive as to the proper use of a motion to alter

judgment. In American Family Life Assurance Co. v. Planned Marketing Assoc., Inc., 389 F. Supp. 1141 (E.D. Va. 1974), the court had dismissed the complaint for lack of jurisdiction. The plaintiff filed a Rule 59(e) motion requesting the court to vacate its order on the grounds that the dismissal was "contrary to law." In response to this motion, the court stated:

Defendants point out that plaintiff's motion to vacate and set aside the Court's previous order is, in reality, merely an appeal from that order. Defendants concede, however, that Rule 59(e) is available to a movant who seeks to have an order vacated. 11 Wright & Miller Fed. Practice & Procedure, §2804 (1973); 6A Moore, Fed. Practice, para. 59,12[1] (1974). 389 F. Supp. at 1144.

The court, holding the motion proper, proceeded to consider it on its merits.

Here, as in American Family Life, Appellant moved the District Court under Rule 59(e) to alter judgment on the grounds the court's judgment was contrary to law. In holding the procedure improper, the District Court erred in its interpretation of Rule 59(e). Appellant's Motion should be considered on its merits.

Spatz v. Mascone, 368 F. Supp. 352 (W.D. Pa. 1974) explained the origins and breadth of Rule 59(e). There, the plaintiff moved the court under Rule 59(e) to vacate its order granting defendant's motion for summary judgment. In holding that the plaintiff's motion was proper, the court quoted at length from Gainey v. Brotherhood of Ry. and Steamship Clerks, 303 F.2d 716, 718 (3d Cir. 1962):

Rule 59 has been properly described as 'an amalgamation of the motion for new trial at common law and the petition for rehearing in equity adapted to the unified procedure...' 6 Moore, Federal Practice (2d ed. 1953) para. 59.02, at 3707. Of course, technically there is no trial when summary judgment is granted. But even before Rule 59 was amended in 1946 to add subsection (e), specifically providing for motions to alter or amend a judgment, the original provision of the Rule authorizing a party to move for a new trial within ten days after judgment was construed by several courts as broad enough to include motions for reconsideration of orders finally disposing of action before trial. [Citations omitted.] Since the addition of subsection (e) the courts which have considered the problem seem to have experienced no difficulty in concluding that a motion for rehearing or reconsideration, made within ten days after the entry of an appealable order is within the coverage of Rule 59. 368 F. Supp. at 353. (Emphasis added.)

Appellant's Motion, essentially a motion for reconsideration, timely made, is within the coverage of Rule 59(e), was proper, and therefore should be considered on its merits.

II APPELLANT'S MOTION TO ALTER JUDGMENT SHOULD BE GRANTED.

A. PETITIONER HAS A CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO APPEAL THE JUDGMENT OF THE SMALL CLAIMS COURT AND THUS HAS A CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT, WHICH SHE WAS DENIED.

Article VIII, Section 9 of the Utah Constitution provides in relevant part: "Appeals shall also lie from the final judgment of justices of the peace in civil and criminal cases to the District Courts on both questions of law and fact, and with such limitations and restrictions as shall be provided by law." As held in Salt Lake City, v. Peters, 22 Utah 2d 127, 449 P.2d 652 (1969), this constitutional right to

appeal extends to appeals from city courts as well as from justices of the peace.

Under U.C.A. §78-6-1, small claims courts are a department of city courts and justice courts. Therefore the right to appeal city and justice courts' decisions under the Utah Constitution extends also to small claims courts.

Since Appellant has a constitutional right to appeal the decision of the small claims court, she also has the right, under the Due Process Clauses of the Utah and United States Constitutions, to notice of her right to appeal. As stated in Mullane v. Central Hanover Bank & Trust Co., 339 U.S. 306, 314 (1950):

"The fundamental requisite of due process of law is the opportunity to be heard." Grannis v. Ordean, 234 U.S. 385, 394. This right to be heard has little reality or worth unless one is informed that the matter is pending and can choose for himself whether to appear or default, acquiesce or contest.

In the present case, Appellant was not informed that judgment was entered in Respondent Small Claims Court. As will be explained more fully below, under U.C.A. §78-6-10, a dissatisfied defendant in small claims court has five days from notice of entry of judgment to appeal to the district court. Since Appellant had no notice of the entry of judgment in the Small Claims Court, she was not informed when the appeal period began. Lacking this information, she was unable to file an appeal. Because the lack of notice denied Appellant her constitutional right to appeal, she was denied her constitutional right to due process.

B. PETITIONER HAS A STATUTORY RIGHT TO NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT IN SMALL CLAIMS COURT UNDER U.C.A. §§78-6-10 AND 78-6-11 AND RULE 73(h), WHICH SHE WAS DENIED.

U.C.A. §78-6-10, referring to small claims courts, provides:

The judgment of said court shall be conclusive upon the plaintiff unless a counterclaim has been interposed. If the defendant is dissatisfied, he may, within five days from the entry of said judgment against him, appeal to the district court of the county in which said court is held....

This section does not mention the right to notice of the entry of judgment. Nevertheless, U.C.A. §78-6-11, U.R.C.P. Rule 73(h), and Utah case law make it clear that §78-6-10 contemplates the defendant's receiving notice of entry of judgment to mark the beginning of the appeal period.

U.C.A. §78-6-11, referring to small claims courts, provides, "The appeal shall be in the same manner as appeals generally from a city or justice court." U.R.C.P. Rule 73(h) provides:

An appeal may be taken to the district court from a final judgment rendered in a city or justice court within one month after notice of the entry of such judgment, or within such shorter time as may be provided by law.... (Emphasis added.)

When these two provisions are read together, two points emerge.

(1) Appeals from small claims courts are governed by the five-day period. This period is consistent with the legislature's power under Rule 73(h) to provide for a shorter appeal period than thirty days from city or justice court, of which small

claims court is a department under §78-6-1. (2) The appeal period from small claims court commences upon notice of entry of judgment to the defendant. This notice requirement is clear, since (a) appeal from small claims court is taken in the same manner as appeals generally from city or justice court, and (b) the appeal period from city or justice court of which small claims court is a department, begins upon notice of entry of judgment.

If a dissatisfied defendant in small claims court such as Appellant, receives no notice of entry of judgment, there can be no time limit for the filing of appeal, since the appeal period cannot start without that notice. Therefore, Appellant's appeal should not be time-barred, since the statutory period for filing had not been started by Respondent giving Appellant notice of entry of an adverse judgment in Respondent Court.

Utah case law under current and former statutes supports this interpretation of the notice requirement. The most recent case, Larson Ford Sales, Inc. v. Silver, 551 P.2d 233 (Utah 1976), upheld §78-6-10 against an equal protection challenge, made on the basis that an appellant from small claims court has only five days to appeal, rather than one month as from city and justice court. Implicit in that case is that notice of the entry of judgment is required to begin the appeal period from small claims court. This Court states "[A]s an appellant from the small claims court he is allowed

only five days within which to file his notice of appeal, whereas appeals from city and district court judgments may be made within one month." 551 P.2d at 233. This Court recognized the distinction between appeals from city and from small claims courts as between the time periods only and not in the right to notice of entry of judgment to start the appeal period.

Forsythe v. Third Judicial Dist. Ct., 41 Utah 16, 123 P.621, 623 (1912), decided under Comp. Laws of 1907, §3744, a predecessor of Rule 73(h), explained the purpose of the notice requirement:

Its purpose manifestly is to apprise the losing party of the time the judgment was entered against him in the action, so as to give him ample opportunity to take an appeal to the district court.... The primary object of the service of the notice, therefore, is to set in motion the 30-day period within which an appeal must be taken, and to leave no room for doubt that the losing party has had notice of when that period begins and ends.

It is inconceivable that the Utah Legislature would retain the notice requirement for appellants from city and justice courts, yet abandon the fair-minded purposes behind the notice requirement for the less advantaged appellants from small claims court, who have a much shorter appeal period.

Further, a denial of right to notice of entry of judgment would clearly be a denial of equal protection, as well as a denial of due process as explained supra. Although the shorter appeal period has been held not a denial of equal protection in Larson Ford Sales, Inc. v. Silver, supra, that

case did not address the issue of whether small claims court appellants could be denied notice of entry of judgment consistent with the Equal Protection Clause. It may be reasonable, considering the nature and purpose of small claims court, to provide a shorter appeal period; nothing in the nature and purpose of small claims court, however, justifies denying appellants the opportunity to know when the appeal period begins and ends and thus the opportunity to file timely appeals from adverse judgments.

The appeal period dates from the notice of entry of judgment. In the absence of this notice, the appeal period cannot run. Therefore, in the circumstances of this case, the appeal cannot be time-barred. Here, the judgment was entered against Appellant in Respondent Court on May 2, 1977. Appellant was not given notice of the entry of judgment until July 1, 1977, when Appellant's counsel received notice from the other party to the judgment, the plaintiff in State of Utah v. Rose Marie Hume. On the next working day Appellant's counsel mailed the Notice of Appeal, which was filed in Respondent Court on July 7, 1977. Appellant thus complied with the appeal procedure as rapidly as possible in the circumstances. In similar circumstances, this Court has held an appeal not time-barred. In Bullen v. Anderson, 81 Utah 151, 17 P.2d 213, 215 (1932), decided under an earlier statute allowing filing of the notice of appeal within thirty days of notice of entry of judgment, this Court held

[T]he time for taking an appeal dated from notice of the entry of judgment, not from the date of the entry of the judgment.... In the absence of notice of the entry of judgment, an appeal taken more than six months after its entry is in due time notwithstanding the judgment debtor may have had actual knowledge of its entry.

Under Bullen, Appellant's appeal was filed in due time. Therefore, that appeal should be heard.

C. THERE WAS INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE AS A
MATTER OF LAW TO ESTABLISH THAT RESPONDENT
SENT APPELLANT NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT.

At the hearing in the District Court on Appellant's Petition for a Writ of Mandamus to compel Respondent to forward the Notice of Appeal, Respondent produced a copy of a letter that it claimed it had mailed to Appellant giving notice of entry of judgment. This evidence is insufficient as a matter of law to justify a decision that Respondent sent or Appellant received notice of the entry of judgment.

1. TO RAISE A PRESUMPTION IN FACT OF
RECEIPT OF A LETTER, THERE MUST BE
PROOF OF MAILING THE LETTER PROPERLY
ADDRESSED WITH POSTAGE PREPAID.

When a party attempts to prove that another person received a letter in the mail, courts engage in a presumption of fact that if the letter is proved to be properly addressed and mailed, the letter was received by the addressee. That is the rule in Utah, as stated by this Court in Campbell v. Gowans, 35 Utah 268, 100 P.397 (1909), and Brown v. Fraternal Accident Ass'n of America, 18 Utah 265, 55 P.63 (1898). It is important to keep in mind that proof of mailing is an

antecedent to application of the presumption. As stated in Suits v. Order of United Commercial Travelers of America, 139 Minn. 246, 166 N.W. 222, 223 (1918), "The presumption that a properly mailed letter will reach the person to whom addressed has application only when the act of mailing is unquestioned or conclusively established." (Emphasis added) In Suits, the court affirmed the trial court's finding of non-receipt, holding that proof of mailing was not conclusive despite (1) subsequent action by the alleged addressee consistent with receipt of the letter; (2) a stipulation of facts by the parties that a witness would testify to the preparation of the letter, enclosure in a properly addressed envelope, including postage and return address, non-return of the letter, and while no particular recollection of mailing the letter, belief of mailing from habit and custom; (3) a further stipulation that the person who allegedly mailed the letter was methodical; and (4) the fact that after the sender's death, the letter was not found among his papers.

2. MERE PROOF OF WRITING A LETTER DOES
NOT RAISE AN INFERENCE OF MAILING SO
AS TO RAISE THE PRESUMPTION OF RECEIPT

In the present case, the only evidence that the notice of Respondent's judgment was sent to Appellant was a copy of the letter claimed to have been mailed. Such a showing is insufficient to raise an inference of mailing so as to raise the presumption of receipt. In Jacobs v. National Accident and Health Insurance Company, 103 Vt. 5, 151 A. 556 (1930), the court stated:

All that appears is that such a letter is written. It is not shown that it ever found its way into the mails. It is to be remembered that it is the mailing of a letter that raises the so-called presumption that it was ever received by the addressee.... But it would be going too far, we think to say that evidence that a letter was "written" implies that it was deposited in the post office, properly stamped and addressed. It was held in *Uhlman v. A & S Brewing Co.* (C.C.) 53 F. 485, that the mailing of a letter will not be presumed from the fact that it was written. To the same effect are *National Building Association v. Quin*, 120 Ga. 358, 47 S.E. 962; *Best v. German Ins. Co.*, 68 Mo. App. 598; *Bankers' Mutual Cas. Co. v. People's Bank*, 127 Ga. 326, 56 S.E. 429; and *Sills v. Burge*, 141 Mo. App. 148, 124 S.W. 605.

To the same effect is *James E. Cashman v. Spellman*, 233 App. Div. 45, 48, 251 N.Y.S. 240 (1931), which also held it error for the trial court to have admitted a copy of a letter in evidence without proof of mailing, which allegedly occurred "in the ordinary course of business."

On these grounds, in the present case no inference of mailing of the notice of the judgment should have arisen, and therefore Respondent could not avail itself of the presumption of receipt, which only flows from proof of the proper mailing.

3. THE PRESUMPTION OF RECEIPT THAT ARISES FROM PROOF OF PROPER MAILING IS A REBUTTABLE PRESUMPTION OF FACT, AND DENIAL OF RECEIPT CREATES A CONFLICT IN THE EVIDENCE TO BE RESOLVED BY THE TRIER OF FACT.

Brown v. Fraternal Accident Ass'n of America, *supra*, 66, established the rule in Utah that "the presumption of fact raised by the proof that the notice was sent by mail was a

circumstance, when opposed by a denial of the receipt of the letter, to be weighed by the jury with all the other evidence in determining the question whether or not the letter was actually received." That is, the presumption of fact is rebuttable. In Campbell, supra, the presumption was in fact successfully rebutted by denial of receipt, coupled with action inconsistent with receipt. The fact situation in Suits, supra, is also relevant, since the court upheld a finding of non-receipt there in the face of a much stronger showing of mailing than was made by Respondent in the present case.

4. THE PARTY ASSERTING RECEIPT OF A
LETTER HAS THE BURDEN OF PROVING
ITS RECEIPT.

In Huntley v. Whittier, 105 Mass. 391, 392-93 7 Am. Rep. 536, (1870), the court stated, "the burden of proving its receipt remains throughout upon the party who asserts it." This rule accords with the basic rule of fairness in the law of evidence that a party should not be forced to prove a negative, e.g., that a letter was not mailed or received. As the court stated in Palicka v. Ruth Fisher School Dist. No. 90 of Maricopa County, 13 Ariz. App. 5, 473 P.2d 807, 811 (1970), "It is the general rule that the party asserting the affirmative of an issue has the burden of proving it." To the same effect are Firkins v. Affolter, 504 P.2d 365 (Colo. App. 1972); and Carter v. Burn Constr. Co., Inc., 85 N.M. 27, 508 P.2d 1324 (1973). This rule is especially salutary in a case such as the present, where the party asserting the affirmative had physical control

the subject matter and thus personal knowledge available as to the handling of the letter.

Since in the present case Respondent has not presented competent evidence to uphold its burden, Appellant should be found not to have received notice of the judgment more than five days before filing her Notice of Appeal. Therefore, this case should be remanded to the District Court to issue a Writ of Mandamus to compel Respondent to forward Appellant's Notice of Appeal to the District Court.

CONCLUSION

Respondent has produced insufficient evidence as a matter of law to support a finding that Respondent sent or Appellant received notice of entry of judgment. Under the Utah Constitution Appellant has a right to notice of entry of judgment. Appellant also has a statutory right to notice of entry of judgment. Therefore the District Court's denial of a Writ of Mandamus to compel Respondent to forward the Notice of Appeal was improper. Further, the denial of Appellant's Motion to Alter the Judgment denying the Writ, on the basis that that Motion was improper procedure, was an error of law.

Wherefore, Appellant prays that this Court:

1. Enter its Judgment that Appellant's Motion to Alter Judgment was proper procedure and that the evidence to support a finding that Respondent sent, or Appellant received,

notice of entry of judgment was insufficient as a matter of law.

2. Reverse the District Court's denial of Appellant's Motion and order the District Court to issue a Writ of Mandamus to compel Respondent to forward Appellant's Notice of Appeal.