1978

# Rose Marie Hume v. Small Claims Court of Murray City : Brief of Defendant-Respondent Small Claims Court of Murray City

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF CASE

There is an action resulting from a Denial of a Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment.

### DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The District Court denied a petition for a Writ of Mandamus to compel Murray City Court to forward to the District Court the transcript of a Small Claims Court proceeding on appeal. Thereafter the Appellant filed a motion to the District Court under Rule 59 (e) of the U.R.C.P. to alter or amend the Judgment. This Motion was denied by the District Court. From the order denying plaintiff's Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment, the plaintiff appealed.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondent seeks an order of this Court affirming the decision of the District Court in all respects.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

On April 21, 1977 in the Small Claims Court of Murray City a hearing was held on the matter of the State of Utah v. Rose Marie Hume. On May 2nd, 1977, Judge L. H. Griffiths of the Small Claims Murray Court found in favor of the Plaintiff, State of Utah, and awarded Judgment against the Appellant in the amount

of \$175.00 plus \$8.00 Court Costs. On this date Respondent Court Clerk mailed the Notice of Judgment to Appellant. Then on the 7th day of July, 1977, the Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal in the Third District Court appealing the Judgment of the Small Claims Court of Murray City. Thereafter, on July 18, 1977, the Respondent Court Clerk sent a Notice to Appellant that would not forward the Notice of Appeal to the Third District Court for the reason that it had not been timely filed.

On August 16, 1977, the Appellant then filed a petition with the Third District Court for a Writ of Mandamus to compel the Respondent Court Clerk to forward the transcript of the final judgment in the case State of Utah vs. Rose Marie Hume to the District Court for appeal. On October 14, 1977, the District Court, after hearing on the matter, entered its order denying the petition for a Writ of Mandamus and ruled that the time for appeal from the Murray City Small Claims Court obviously had elapsed. On October 31, 1977, the Appellant then filed a Motion to Alter the Judgment pursuant to Rule 59 (e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. This Motion was also denied by the District Court. An Order entered December 22, 1977, ruling that the Appellant's Motion was not a proper procedure for the Appellant to pursue. Thereafter, the Appellant filed its Notice of Appeal to the Utah State Supreme Court from the Order of the District Court entered December 22, 1977.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE SOLE ISSUE PRESENTLY BEFORE THIS COURT IS WHETHER RULE 59 (e) IS THE PROPER PROCEDURE TO USE TO SECURE REVIEW OF THE ORDER DENYING APPELLANT'S PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS.

Appellant in its brief cites several "Questions to be Decided". However, the first question cited by Appellant is the sole question at issue before this Court. The Notice of Appeal filed by Appellant states that she was appealing to this Court from the District Court's order denying Petitioner's Motion to Alter Judgment, dated December 21, 1977. This Order, entered December 22, 1977, stated simply that the Appellant's Motion to Alter Judgment was not the proper procedure for the Appellant to pursue and therefore denied the Motion.

Appellant proposes that several other issues or questions need to be decided by this Court. However, all of the other questions together with the substantial documentation and argument cited in connection therewith go to the merits of Appellant's Petition for Writ of Mandamus. None of the issues discussed therein concern the availability of the Rule 59 (e) procedure to secure review of the District Court Order denying Appellant's Petition for Writ of Mandamus.

Therefore the only question before this Court is the

propriety of the use of the Rule 59 (e) Motion to secure  
of the District Court's previous order and all other argu-  
contained in Appellant's brief are superfluous and not in

## POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT RULED CORRECTLY IN DENYING APPELLANT  
MOTION TO ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT.

## POINT A

RULE 59 (e) OF THE U.R.C.P., IS NOT AVAILABLE AS A  
TO ALLOW AGGRIEVED PARTIES TO REARGUE THE SAME ISSUES ARG  
PRIOR HEARINGS IN THE SAME COURT.

The Appellant in her Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment  
not introduce any new issues, evidence or argument that has  
been introduced at the prior hearing on her Petition for  
Mandamus. In filing the Motion to Alter or Amend the Judgment  
all that the Appellant had actually done was to ask the Court  
a Motion for a Rehearing to reconsider an unfavorable ruling  
a prior motion.

This Court has had occasion to rule directly on Motion  
Reconsider. In Utah State Employees Credit Union v. Anthony  
Riding, 469 P.2d 1, 24 Utah 2d 211, the aggrieved Defendant  
filed a Motion to Reconsider the Court's previous ruling.  
Court in discussing this issue stated, "We are unaware of



such motion under our rules," and stated further that "The motion to reconsider . . . the judgment is abortive under our Rules." Riding at P.2.

The Supreme Court of the State of California has also had opportunity to rule on precisely this same issue. In the case Farrar v. McCormick 25 Cal. App 3d 706, 102 Cal Rptr 190 (1972), the Court acknowledged that there was also no such rule or other authority for such a motion in the California jurisdiction by stating as follows:

We now weigh plaintiff's appeal from the order denying his Motion to Reconsider. No statutory or other authority exists for a bare "Motion to Reconsider."

"Here so far as can be told, Plaintiff merely renewed his previous opposition to defend its motion to dismiss, asking the Court to think about its ruling once again." Farrar at P.193.

Such is precisely the case now before this Court. All the Appellant tried to achieve through the Rule 59 (e) Motion was to simply ask the Court to think about its ruling once more, presenting no new evidence, facts or issues to be decided by the Court.

Appellant cites several cases as authority for allowing the use of the 59 (e) Motion to allow her to have a second chance to argue her Motion. However, her cases can be easily distinguished from the instant case. In the case cited by the Appellant, Nichols v. State, 554 P.2d 231 (Utah 1976), the Appellant had filed the 59 (e) Motion in an effort to have the

Court amend an order rendered some seven months prior which missed the Plaintiff's complaint and to allow the Appellant file an amended Complaint. That case is different from the instant case in that in Nichols the Appellant was seeking to amend the Judgment entered by the District Court previously to allow them to introduce new issues raised in an Amended Complaint. This then lead to this Court's conclusion that "after an order of dismissal, the Plaintiff must move under rules 59 (e) or 60 to reopen the Judgment." Nichols at P.232. The purpose in amending the Judgment, however, would have been to allow the Plaintiff to file an Amended Complaint.

The Appellant also cites the cases of Spatz v. Masc 368 F Supp. 352 and Gainey v. Brotherhood of Railroad and Clerks, 303 F. 2d 716, as further authority to allow the Plaintiff the Rule 59 (e) Motion. Both of those cases, however, were decided by a Federal Court applying the local procedural rules which in those cases, were the Pennsylvania Rules of Procedure which allow Motions for Reconsideration and Reargument. The Court in both of these cases held in affect that since the Pennsylvania local rules allowed a "Motion for Reconsideration and Reargument" they would construe the Federal Rule 59 (e) to be substantially the same rule. This argument, however, could not work in this jurisdiction, where this Court was held in the instant case that there simply is no Motion to Reconsider or Reargument a case in this jurisdiction.

POINT B

THE RULE 59 (e) MOTION TO ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT SHOULD BE USED ONLY TO ALTER OR AMEND A JUDGMENT, NOT TO APPEAL A JUDGMENT.

This Court is urged to adopt an interpretation of the Rule 59 (e) Motion that it should be used only to Alter or Amend a Judgment, exactly as the rule reads in the Rules of Civil Procedure. It should not be used as a method of appeal from a judgment of the District Court. That authority lies within the sole province of this Court. Rule 59 (e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure is identical to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and therefore discussions in Federal jurisdictions considering Rule 59 (e) are demonstrative of the interpretation which this Court is urged to place upon the Rule 59 (e) Motion.

The Federal District Court of Ohio arrived at exactly the conclusion urged upon this Court in Erickson Tool Co. v. Balas Collet Co., 277 F Supp 266 (D.C. Ohio, 1967).

Plaintiff has also moved pursuant to rule 59 (e) of the Federal Rules of Procedure for alteration or amendment of the Court's Judgment. Plaintiff has not set out the alterations or amendments it desires. It appears, however, from a glance at the motion and from the arguments contained in the brief of counsel accompanying the motion, that Plaintiff is presenting substantially the same contentions that were made in support of its Rule 52 (b) Motion, and that Plaintiff is seeking a complete reversal of the Court's judgment. Such is not the purpose of the Rules relied upon. Erickson at P. 234.

Based upon this argument, the Ohio District Court denied the Plaintiff's motion for alteration or amendment judgment.

From this case emerge two principles concerning the Rule 59 (e) Motion. First, it should not be used to simply reargue substantially the same contentions that are made in an earlier motion. Second, that the 59 (e) Motion should be used only to Alter or Amend the judgment, not to appeal a previous ruling. Sound public policy certainly dictates that such an interpretation of the Rules should be adopted by this Court. A multiplicity of problems arise if this Court were to allow the Rule 59 (e) Motion to be used simply to reargue the same issues a second time. This Court should give finality to the District Court's decisions and thereby prevent a substantial waste of District Courts' time by requiring them to hear twice even issues already made and ruled upon. Therefore, this Court is urged to rule that the Rule 59 (e) Motion is to be used to Alter a judgment not to appeal from one.

### POINT III

ASSUMING ARGUENDO THE RIGHT TO HAVE THE DISTRICT COURT CONSIDER A RULE 59 (e) MOTION, SUCH AN ORDER IS NOT REVIEWABLE BY THIS COURT WHERE THERE IS NO ASSERTION OR SHOWING OF AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION OF THE DISTRICT COURT.

Assuming arguendo that this Court were to hold that the Rule 59 (e) Motion was available to the Appellant to secure review of the District Court's previous ruling, this Court cannot review the district Court's decision denying appellant's Motion to Alter or Amend without a showing or at least an assertion that there was an abuse of discretion by the District Court. The various State Supreme Courts and the Federal Courts throughout the country have had countless opportunities to rule on Rule 59 (a) Motions for New Trial. These Courts have uniformly held that orders denying motions for new trial are not reviewable when the trial judge's discretion is exercised in accordance with accepted legal standards. Meehan v. Gulf Oil Corp., (C.A. Penn. 1963) 312 F. 2d 737. All Federal Courts are in accord that, "a Motion for New Trial is addressed to the sound judicial discretion of the trial court, and its action thereon will not be disturbed on appeal unless such action constitutes a manifest abuse of discretion." Trapp v. U.S. (C.A. Oklahoma, 1949) 177 F.2d 1.

In determining whether or not there has been an abuse of

discretion, the Courts have outlined certain guidelines.

Abuse of discretion in granting or denying a new trial is ordinarily established by a showing that the new trial court acted without authority, for an erroneous reason, or arbitrarily and without justification in the light of all the circumstances as shown by review of the record as a whole. Sommer v. Capitol Transit Company. 192 F. 2d. 413, 89 U.S. D.C. 343 (1951).

This so-called rule of "Abuse of Discretion" has long been the established rule of law in this State. In Greco v. General Motors, 88 U 255, 53 P.2d 1155, this Court stated:

"Motion for New Trial on ground of newly discovered evidence was a matter wholly within the trial court's discretion as long as that discretion was not abused the Supreme Court could not interfere". (emphasis added) Greco at 1156.

If this Court should hold that the 59 (e) Motion was proper then it is urged that this Court adopt a similar standard for appeals from orders denying Rule 59 (e) Motions. Authority for such a standard can be found in the case Walker v. Bank of National Trust & Savings Association 268 F.2d 16 (C.A. 9).

If a motion for a new trial is denied, the order of denial may be reviewed only for manifest abuse of discretion. Lavino v. Jamison, (9 Cir.), 230 F.2d 909. We think it follows, or at least is sufficiently analogous to reach the conclusion that an Order denying the motion made under Rule 59 (e) to Alter or Amend the Judgment is appealable, but only on the question of whether there has been a manifest abuse of discretion. Walker at 16.

In the instant case, there has been no assertion by Appellant that there was an abuse of discretion committed by the District Court Judge. Examination of the Court proceedings

District Court further leads to the conclusion that such claim simply cannot be made in this case. There is no evidence of the District Court acting without authority, for an erroneous reason, arbitrarily, or without justification; and in fact the trial court acted at all times within the proper exercise of all judicial discretion. Therefore, this Court should rule that if the 59 (e) Motion were available to the Appellant, the denial of this Motion is not reviewable by this Court by reason of there having been no claim nor any evidence of an abuse of discretion by the District Court.

#### CONCLUSION

The Appellant has raised several questions to be decided in her brief. However, the only question at issue before this Court is the availability of the Rule 59 (e) Motion to secure review of the District Court's previous ruling.

Aggrieved parties simply should not be allowed to use the Rule 59 (e) Motion as an excuse to reargue an unfavorable decision when no new issues are asserted or raised. The Rule 59 (e) Motion should be allowed to be used only to do exactly as it states: to alter or amend a judgment, not to appeal from one.

Aggrieved parties cannot be allowed to continually fish for methods and arguments for reconsideration but should be required to raise all points and arguments at the time of the initial hearing. Thus parties cannot be allowed to continually

attack every judgment of the District Court. The Rules of Procedure were created to give finality to Judgments and Appellate conduct in this case shows a clear intent to disregard those. Sound public policy dictates that appeals from District Judgments are the sole province of this Court and therefore the District Court did not err in denying Appellant's Motion to Alter or Amend its Judgment.

Further, even conceding that the Rule 59 (e) Motion was not available in this case, the District Court's denial of that Motion is not appealable where there was no showing or assumption of an abuse of discretion by the District Court.

Accordingly, this Court is urged to affirm the District Court's order in all respects.